
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 
Case No. 09-cv-81046-Ryskamp/Vitunac 

INNOVATIVE BIOMETRIC 
TECHNOLOGY, LLC, 
 
    Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
LENOVO (UNITED STATES), INC. 
FUJITSU AMERICA, INC., ASUS 
COMPUTER INTERNATIONAL, MSI 
COMPUTER CORP. and TOSHIBA 
AMERICA INFORMATION SYSTEMS, 
INC. 
 
    Defendants. 
 

 

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

 Plaintiff Innovative Biometric Technology, LLC sues Defendants Lenovo (United States) 

Inc., Fujitsu America, Inc., ASUS Computer International, MSI Computer Corp. and Toshiba 

America Information Systems, Inc. (collectively "Defendants") and states as follows: 

NATURE OF ACTION 

1. This is a claim for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the United 

States, Title 35 of the United States Code, including 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, 281 and 284. 

INNOVATIVE BIOMETRIC TECHNOLOGY AND THE PATENT-IN-SUIT 

2. Innovative Biometric Technology, LLC ("IBT") is a Florida limited liability 

company with offices in Delray Beach and Fort Lauderdale, Florida.  

3. The patent-in-suit is United States Patent No. 7,134,016, entitled "Software 

System for Biometric Dongle Function" which issued on November 7, 2006 ("the '016 patent). 

4. IBT owns all right, title and interest in and, thus, has standing to sue for 

infringement of the '016 patent. 
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DEFENDANTS 

5. Lenovo (United States) Inc. ("Lenovo") is a Delaware corporation with an office 

located at 1009 Think Place, Morrisville, North Carolina 27560.  Lenovo designs, develops, 

offers for sale and sells products nationwide, as well as within this judicial district, that permit 

the practice of the method of claim 1 of the '016  patent. 

6. Fujitsu America, Inc. ("Fujitsu") is a California corporation with an office located 

at 1250 E. Arques Ave, Sunnyvale, CA 94085.  Fujitsu designs, develops, offers for sale and 

sells products nationwide, as well as in this judicial district, that permit the practice of the 

method of claim 1 of the '016 patent.      

7. ASUS Computer International ("ASUS") is a California Company with a 

headquarters at 800 Corporate Way, Fremont, CA 94539. ASUS designs, develops, offers for 

sale and sells products nationwide, as well as in this judicial district, that permit the practice of 

the method of claim 1 of the '016 patent. 

8. MSI Computer Corp. ("MSI") is a California Corporation with an office at 901 

Canada Court, City of Industry, CA 91748. MSI designs, develops, offers for sale and sells 

products nationwide, as well as in this judicial district, that permit the practice of the method of 

claim 1 of the '016 patent. 

9. Toshiba America Information Systems, Inc. ("Toshiba") is a California 

corporation with a principal place of business at 9740 Irvine Blvd, Irvine, California, 92618. 

Toshiba designs, develops, offers for sale and sells products nationwide, as well as in this 

judicial district, that permit the practice of the method of claim 1 of the '016 patent. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

10. This Court has exclusive jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case under 28 

U.S.C. § 1338(a). 
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11. Each of the Defendants is subject to personal jurisdiction in this judicial district 

because each one has transacted business and has committed acts of infringement in this district.   

12. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1400(b) 

because each of the Defendants is subject to personal jurisdiction, does business and has 

committed acts of infringement in this judicial district. 

INFRINGEMENT 

13. Lenovo has infringed and continues to infringe the '016 Patent by, at least, 

knowingly and actively inducing, aiding and abetting others' use of its computer products with 

biometric capabilities, including but not limited to the U330 with VeriFace computer products.  

Lenovo is inducing acts of infringement of others by, among other activities, providing 

consumers with instructions on how to use Lenovo computer products as defined in claim 1 of 

the '016 patent.  Lenovo had knowledge of the '016 patent at the time it acted and continues to 

act with the specific intent to induce infringement. 

14. Fujitsu has infringed and continues to infringe the '016 Patent by, at least, 

knowingly and actively inducing, aiding and abetting others' use of its computer products with 

biometric capabilities, including but not limited to the Lifebook Series computer products.  

Fujitsu is inducing acts of infringement of others by, among other activities, providing 

consumers with instructions on how to use Fujitsu computer products as defined in claim 1 of the 

'016 patent.  Fujitsu had knowledge of the '016 patent at the time it acted and continues to act 

with the specific intent to induce infringement.   

15. ASUS has infringed and continues to infringe the '016 Patent by, at least, 

knowingly and actively inducing, aiding and abetting others' use of its computer products with 

biometric capabilities, including but not limited to the model U6E notebook computer products 

and the model UMPC computer products.  ASUS is inducing acts of infringement of others by, 

among other activities, providing consumers with instructions on how to use ASUS computer 
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products as defined in claim 1 of the '016 patent.  ASUS had knowledge of the '016 patent at the 

time it acted and continues to act with the specific intent to induce infringement. 

16. MSI has infringed and continues to infringe the '016 Patent by, at least, knowingly 

and actively inducing, aiding and abetting others' use of its computer products with biometric 

capabilities, including but not limited to the model M675 and RR201 computer products.  MSI is 

inducing acts of infringement of others by, among other activities, providing consumers with 

instructions on how to use MSI computer products as defined in claim 1 of the '016 patent.  MSI 

had knowledge of the '016 patent at the time it acted and continues to act with the specific intent 

to induce infringement. 

17. Toshiba has infringed and continues to infringe the '016 Patent by, at least, 

knowingly and actively inducing, aiding and abetting others' use of its computer products with 

biometric capabilities, including but not limited to the Satellite A100 and Satellite Pro A100 

computer products.  Toshiba is inducing acts of infringement of others by, among other 

activities, providing consumers with instructions on how to use Toshiba computer products as 

defined in claim 1 of the '016 patent.  Toshiba had knowledge of the '016 patent at the time it 

acted and continues to act with the specific intent to induce infringement. 

18. Accordingly, IBT is entitled to recover damages adequate to compensate it for 

each of the Defendant's infringement, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty. 

19. Defendants' infringement has caused irreparable harm to IBT, who has no 

adequate remedy at law, and will continue to injure IBT, unless and until this Court enters an 

injunction prohibiting further infringement of the '016 patent.  

20. IBT has complied with the requirements of 35 U.S.C. §287. 

21. Defendants' infringement of the '016 patent has been willful, deliberate and 

objectively reckless. 
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NOTICE, KNOWLEDGE, WILLFULNESS 

22. Defendants' infringement has occurred with knowledge of the '016 Patent and 

willfully and deliberately in violation of 35 U.S.C. §271.  Defendants each were given actual 

notice of the '016 Patent in letters which were sent at least as early as: February 17, 2009 to 

Lenovo; July 23, 2009 to ASUS; April 20, 2009 to Fujitsu; December 15, 2009 to MSI; and, 

February 17, 2009 to Toshiba. Each letter provided, among other things, a claim chart that 

compared the Defendant's products with the '016 Patent.  The letters also gave each Defendant 

notice that it was inducing infringement of the '016 Patent, and also included a proposed license 

for the '016 Patent.  Each Defendant has failed to adequately respond to IBT's allegations of 

infringement and, upon information and belief, has not taken necessary steps to avoid 

infringement.  Instead, Defendants have continued to infringe the '016 Patent in an objectively 

reckless manner, with disregard of IBT's patent rights in the '016 Patent. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Innovative Biometric Technology, LLC, respectfully requests 

this Court enter judgment against each of the Defendants, and against their respective 

subsidiaries, successors, parents, affiliates, officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, and 

all persons in active concert or participation with them, granting the following relief: 

A. The entry of judgment in favor of IBT and against each of the Defendants; 

B. An award of damages adequate to compensate IBT for the infringement that has 

occurred (together with prejudgment interest from the date the infringement 

began), but in no event less than a reasonable royalty as permitted by 35 U.S.C. § 

284; 

C. A finding that this case is exceptional and an award to IBT of its attorneys' fees 

and costs as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 285; 
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D. A permanent injunction prohibiting further infringement and/or  inducement of 

infringement of the'016 patent; and, 

E. Such other relief that IBT is entitled to under law and any other relief that this 

Court or a jury may deem just and proper.  

JURY DEMAND 

 IBT demands a trial by jury on all issues presented in this Complaint.   

Dated: October 13, 2010 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 /s/ Raymond P. Niro     
Raymond P. Niro (FL Bar No. 0014584) 
NIRO, HALLER & NIRO 
181 West Madison, Suite 4600 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Phone: (312) 236-0733 
Fax: (312) 236-3137 
Email: rniro@nshn.com 
 
Stanley Dale Klett, Jr.  (FL Bar No. 435716) 
Laurie Stilwell Cohen (FL Bar No. 0057363) 
RUTHERFORD, MULHALL, P.A. 
PGA Financial Plaza, Suite 240 
3399 PGA Boulevard 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 334310 
Phone: (561) 691-8111 
Fax: (561) 625-6186 
Email: sklett@rmlawyer.com 
Email: lcohen@rmlawyer.com  
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Innovative Biometric 
Technology, LLC 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that on October 13, 2010, I electronically filed the foregoing document 
with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing document is being 
served this day on all counsel of record in the attached Service List via transmission of Notice of 
Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF. 
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SERVICE LIST 
Innovative Biometric Technology, LLC v. Lenovo (United States), Inc. and Fujitsu America, Inc. 

Case No. 09-cv-81046-Ryskamp/Vitunac 
United States District Court, Southern District of Florida 

 
Attorneys for Fujitsu America, Inc. 
 
Richard C. Hutchison  
Joshua R. Levenson 
Holland & Knight LLP  
515 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 1200 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301  
Phone: 954-468-1000  
Fax: 954-463-2030   
Email: rick.hutchison@hklaw.com 
 joshua.levenson@hklaw.com  
 
John P. Moran 
Holland & Knight LLP 
2099 Pennsylvania Ave. N.W., Suite 100 
Washington, DC 20006 
Phone: 202-955-3000 
Fax: 202-955-5564 
Email: john.moran@hklaw.com  
 
Joshua C. Krumholz 
Holland & Knight LLP 
10 St. James Ave. 
Boston, MA 02116 
Phone: 617-523-2700 
Fax: 617-523-6850 
Email: joshua.krumholz@hklaw.com  
 

Attorneys for Lenovo (United States), Inc. 
 
Darrell W. Payne  
Stearns Weaver Miller Weissler Alhadeff & Sitterson, P.A.  
150 W Flagler Street, Suite 2200  
Miami, FL 33130  
Phone: 305-789-3415  
Fax: 305-789-3395  
Email: dpayne@stearnsweaver.com  
 
Michael A. Molano  
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP  
990 Marsh Road  
Menlo Park, CA 94025  
Phone: 650-815-2624  
Fax: 650-815-2601  
Email: mmolano@sheppardmullin.com 
 
Graham M. Buccigross 
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP 
12275 El Camino Real, Suite 200 
San Diego, CA 92130 
Phone: 858-720-8900 
Fax: 858-509-3691 
Email: gbuccigross@sheppardmullin.com 
 

Attorneys for MSI Computer Corp. 
 
Rudolph F. Aragon 
Maria J. Beguiristain 
Eric A. Krause 
Bijal V. Vakil 
Shamita D. Etienne-Cummings 
Thomas C. Flynn 
White and Case LLP 
200 South Biscayne Blvd., Suite 4900 
Miami, FL 33131-2352 
Phone: 305-371-2700 
Fax: 305-358-5744 
Email: raragon@whitecase.com 
 mbeguiristain@whitecase.com  
 ekrause@whitecase.com 
 bvakil@whitecase.com  
 setienne@whitecase.com 
 tflynn@whitecase.com 

Attorneys for ASUS Computer International 
 
Jeffrey T. Cook 
Akerman Senterfitt 
SunTrust International Center 
One Southeast Third Avenue, 25th Floor 
Miami, FL 33131-1704 
Phone: 305-374-5600 
Fax: 305-374-5095 
Email:  jeffrey.cook@akerman.com 
 
Karen Boyd 
Joshua Masur 
Turner Boyd, LLP 
2625 Middlefield Rd. #675 
Palo Alto, CA 94306 
Phone: 650-494-1530 
Fax: 650-472-8028 
Email: boyd@turnerboyd.com 
 masur@turnerboyd.com 
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Attorneys for Toshiba America Information 
Systems, Inc. 
 
Robert H. Friedman 
John F. Mariani 
Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
777 South Flagler Drive, Suite #500 East 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-6194 
Phone: 561-655-1980 
Fax: 561-655-5677 
Email: rfriedman@gunster.com 
 jmariani@gunster.com 
 
Jeffrey K. Sherwood 
Matthew J. Ricciardi 
Dickstein Shapiro LLP 
1825 Eye Street NW 
Washington, DC 20006 
Phone: (202) 420-2200 
Fax: (202) 420-2201 
Email: sherwoodj@dicksteinshapiro.com  
 RicciardiM@dicksteinshapiro.com    
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